CODEBOOK

Michigan State of the State 36 965 cases

Weight Variable: statewt

CONTENTS

item		page
ID1	Case ID	1
R1		1
random	Random	1
cnty	County	2
regn	Region	4
listed	Type of Number	4
CC1	Past Financial	5
CC2	Future Financial	5
CC3	Current Financial	6
CC4	Inflation Rate	6
CC5	Unemployment	7
CC6	Business Conditions	7
PO2	Granholm Approval	8
PO1	Bush Approval	8
gt1	Trust Federal Government	9
SEC4	Terrorist Threat	9
CG2	US Responsibility	10
CL1	Civil Liberties	11
cl1flup	Civil Liberties - Follow-up	12
IR1	Iraq Invasion	12
IR2	Benefits/Costs War	13
vote1	Vote 2004 Election	13
vote2	Vote Candidate	14
ex1	Protect Terrorism	14
ex2	Values	15
ex3	Economy and Job Creation	15
ex4	Healthcare Policy	16
ex5	Social Security	16
ехб	Leadership Qualities	17
ex7	Environmental Policies	17
ex8	Ability Deal Iraq	18
ex9	Moral Issues	18
prop2	Vote Prop2	19
cs1	Smoke 100 Cigarettes	19
cs2	Current Smoking Status	20
cs3a	Ads Keep Smokers	21
cs3b	Ads Switch Brands	22
cs3c	Ads Encourage Minors	22
cs3d	Ads Harder to Quit	23
cs3e	Ads Encourage More Smoke	23
cs3f	Warnings Discourage Smoking	24
I1	Medical Insurance	24
T1a	Medicaid	25

item		page
I1b	Reason No Longer Medicaid	25
I2	Type of Health Insurance	26
I2a	Supplemental Insurance Coverage	26
I2aa	Source of Supplemental Insurance	27
I2b	Medicare/Medicaid	27
I2c	Length Coverage	28
I2d	Coverage - Special Conditions	30
I2e@a	Conditions Covered - 1st Mention	30
I2e@b	Conditions Covered - 2nd Mention	31
17	Medicare HMO	31
13	Name Private Plan	32
I3a	Others Covered	33
I12	Number Plans	34
I15	Importance of Cost	34
I5	Primary Care Physician	35
16	Referrals	35
18	Prescription Medicines	36
I17	Switch Different Plan	36
E4	Charter Schools	37
sc1	Funding for Capital Resources	38
sc2	Pass Funding	39
sc3	Condition Buildings	40
CD1	Sex	40
CD2	Year Born	41
CD3	Education	43
CD5a	Ethncity	43
CD4a@a	White	44
CD4a@b	African American or Black	44
CD4a@c	Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	45
CD4a@d	Asian	45
CD4a@e	American Indian or Alaska Native	46
CD6	Religion	46
CD6a	Participate Religious Services	47
CD7@a	Political ID	47
CD7@b	Republican	48
CD7@c	Democrat	48
CD7@d	Independent	49
partyid	Party ID	49
P17@a	Political Ideology	50
P17@b	Conservative	50
P17@c	Liberal	51
P17@d	Middle	51
ideology	1 very conservative	52
vi2	Registered Voter	52
vi4	Vote 2000 Election	53
fp1	Follow Politics	53

item		page
interest	Interest Politics	54
CD8	Marital Status	54
CD10	Adults	55
CD15	Employment Status	56
UN1	Union Member	56
UN2	Past Union	57
UN3	Union Family	57
inca	\$35,000 or More	58
incb	Less Than \$20,000	58
incc	Less than \$10,000	59
incd	\$60,000 or More	59
ince	\$40,000 or More	60
incf	\$50,000 or More	60
incg	\$70,000 or More	61
income	Income	61
CD26	Phone Lines	62
X1	Community	62
zipcode	Zip Code	63
RI@a	Re-Interview	63
contacts	Contacts	64
length	Interview Length	65
idate	Interview Date	66
iwer	Interviewer	68
males	Males	70
females	Females	70
races	Respondent Race	71
mult2	Multiple Racial IDs	71
agecat	Rs age in categories	72 72
adjwt	Weight adj for phones adults race gender age within regi	72 72
msueregn msuewt	Region code based on MSU Extension Groupings	72 73
statewt	weight by MSU region Weight for Statewide Estimates	73 73
rac3	Race 3 categories	73
AGE	Age of Respondent	73 74
imprace	Respondent Race with Imputation for missing data	7 4 76
newinc	Alternative Coding of Income	76 76
sample	Sample source of Respondent	76 77
pampie	Dampte Boutce of Respondent	, ,

ID1 Case ID

965 cases

Type: character Width: 5

Input location: 1/1-5

R1

PCT N VALUE 100.0 965 1

965 cases

Type: character Width: 1

Input location: 1/6

random Random

> PCT N VALUE LABEL 13.9 135 0 9.2 89 1 13.6 131 2 10.4 101 3 11.2 108 7.9 76 5 7.1 68 6 91 9.4 7 87 9.0 8 80 8.3 9 ___ 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 9

cnty			Coun	ty
	PCT 0.1 2 1.3 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.8 0.9 0.1 2.6 4 0.5 0.3 0.1 1.0 0.5 0.1 1.4 0.7 6.2 0.3 1.0 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.1 1.0 0.2 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5	N 0 2 13 3 4 4 2 7 9 1 25 4 8 5 2 3 3 1 10 1 4 1 14 7 60 2 3 10 4 2 4 10 23 4 3 2 4 21 13 4 57 1 1 9 2	VALUE 26001 26003 26005 26007 26009 26011 26013 26015 26017 26019 26021 26023 26025 26027 26029 26031 26033 26035 26037 26039 26041 26043 26045 26047 26049 26051 26053 26057 26069 26071 26073 26077 26079 26081 26083 26085 26087 26089	LABEL

```
0.8
      7 26091
1.5
     14 26093
0.0
      0 26097
      82 26099
8.5
0.2
      2 26101
0.9
     8 26103
0.5
      5 26105
0.3
      3 26107
0.1
      1 26109
0.6
     6 26111
0.2
      2 26113
2.3
      22 26115
0.7
     7 26117
0.0
     0 26119
1.2
     12 26121
0.6
     6 26123
8.8
      85 26125
0.1
      1 26127
0.2
      2 26129
      4 26133
0.4
      2 26135
0.2
0.3
      3 26137
1.3
      12 26139
0.0
     0 26141
      2 26143
0.2
1.3
     12 26145
2.4
      23 26147
      7 26149
0.8
     11 26151
1.1
0.1
      1 26153
     5 26155
0.5
0.5
     5 26157
0.8
      8 26159
    57 26161
5.9
17.8 171 26163
     4 26165
0.5
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 26001 MD Codes: none

Decimals: 0 Max: 26165

regn Region PCT N VALUE LABEL 3.2 31 1 upper pen 5.6 54 2 northern 13.9 134 3 west central 8.6 83 4 east central 13.6 131 5 southwest 46.3 446 6 southeast 8.8 85 7 Detroit

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 1/13

listed Type of Number

> PCT N VALUE LABEL 78.3 756 1 listed 21.7 209 2 unlisted ___

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 2

CC1 Past Financial

I'd like to start by asking you a few questions about how things are going for Michigan residents in general.

Would you say that you (and your family living there) are better off or worse off financially than you were a year ago?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
37.3 358 1 BETTER OFF
32.3 311 2 ABOUT THE SAME
30.4 292 3 WORSE OFF
4 8 DO NOT KNOW
0 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Input location: 1/15

CC2 Future Financial

Now looking ahead, do you think that a year from now, you (and your family living there) will be better off financially or worse off financially?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
60.1 528 1 BETTER OFF
20.1 177 3 ABOUT THE SAME
19.8 174 5 WORSE OFF
85 8 DO NOT KNOW
1 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CC3 Current Financial

How would you rate your household's overall financial situation these days?
Would you say it is excellent, good, just fair, not so good, or poor?

```
PCT
      N VALUE LABEL
8.6
    83
           1 EXCELLENT
47.8 458
           2 GOOD
29.8 285
           3 JUST FAIR
            4 NOT SO GOOD
7.4
     71
6.4
     61
            5 POOR
      6
            8 DO NOT KNOW
      0
            9 REFUSED
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/17

CC4 Inflation Rate

During the next twelve months, do you think the rate of inflation in this country will go up, will go down, or will stay about the same as it was in the past 12 months?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
65.5 615 1 GO UP
5.3 50 3 GO DOWN
29.2 274 5 STAY ABOUT THE SAME
26 8 DO NOT KNOW
0 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CC5 Unemployment

Twelve months from now, do you expect the unemployment situation in this country to be better than, worse than, or about the same as it was in the last 12 months?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
25.3 241 1 BETTER THAN
34.1 324 3 WORSE THAN
40.6 386 5 ABOUT THE SAME
14 8 DO NOT KNOW
0 9 REFUSED
---
965 Cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/19

CC6 Business Conditions

Now turning to business conditions in your community, do you think that during the next twelve months your community will have good times financially, or bad times financially?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
46.6 425 1 GOOD TIMES
38.2 348 3 BAD TIMES
15.3 139 5 NEITHER
51 8 DO NOT KNOW
2 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

PO2 Granholm Approval

Thinking about our elected officials, overall, how would you rate the way Jennifer Granholm is performing her job as Michigan's governor?

Would you say excellent, good, fair, or poor?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
7.5
    69
           1 EXCELLENT
35.1 322
           2 GOOD
38.6 353
           3 FAIR
18.8 172
           4 POOR
     40
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     9
            9 REFUSED
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/21

PO1 Bush Approval

Overall, how would you rate the way George W. Bush is performing his job as President?

Would you say excellent, good, fair, or poor?

```
PCT
      N VALUE LABEL
         1 EXCELLENT
7.1
     67
            2 GOOD
26.4 250
            3 FAIR
27.6 262
            4 POOR
38.9 369
            8 DO NOT KNOW
      7
            9 REFUSED
     10
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

qt1 Trust Federal Government

How much of the time do you think you can trust the government in Washington to do what is right?

Would you say nearly always or most of the time, some of the time, seldom, or almost never?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
22.2 210 1 JUST ABOUT ALWAYS
48.4 458
           2 MOST OF THE TIME
17.5 166
           3 SOME OF THE TIME
12.0 114
           4 NONE OF THE TIME
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     13
           9 REFUSED
     965 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/23

Terrorist Threat SEC4

The next few questions are about the threat of terrorism.

All in all, how concerned are you that the United States might suffer another terrorist attack in the next 3 months?

Would you say you are very concerned, somewhat concerned, not very concerned, or not concerned at all?

```
N VALUE LABEL
 PCT
21.2 203 1 VERY CONCERNED
45.7 437 2 SOMEWHAT CONCERNED
24.5 235 3 NOT VERY CONCERNED
8.6 83 4 NOT CONCERNED AT ALL
6 8 DON'T KNOW
                             9 REFUSED
               1
            965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/24

CG2 US Responsibility

How much responsibility do you personally believe the United States bears for the hatred that led to the 9/11 terrorist attacks?

Would you say a lot of responsibility, some, a little, or none at all?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
27.3	256	1	A LOT
35.7	334	2	SOME
19.6	183	3	A LITTLE
17.4	163	4	NONE AT ALL
	19	8	DON'T KNOW
	11	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

CL1Civil Liberties

Next I am going to read two statements. Please tell me which one you agree with most.

The first is, in order to curb terrorism in this country, it will be necessary to give up some civil liberties.

We should preserve our freedoms above all, even if there remains some risk of terrorism.

(Which statement do you agree with most?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
35.4	321	1	NECESSARY GIVE UP CIVIL LIBERTIES
60.4	548	5	PRESERVE FREEDOMS
4.2	38	7	DEPENDS/NEITHER
	41	8	DO NOT KNOW
	17	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

cl1flup Civil Liberties - Follow-up

If you had to choose, which statement is closer to your opinion?

(In order to curb terrorism in this country, it will be necessary to give up some civil liberties). or

(We should preserve our freedoms above all, even if there remains some risk of terrorism.)

```
PCT
            VALUE LABEL
8.8
      5
                1 NECESSARY GIVE UP CIVIL LIBERTIES
43.0
     25
                 5 PRESERVE FREEDOMS
48.2 28
                 7 DEPENDS/NEITHER
     17
                8 DO NOT KNOW
                9 REFUSED
      4
     886
                . Not Applicable
     965 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 1/27

IR1 Iraq Invasion

> Now, thinking about the 2003 American invasion of Iraq, do you think it was justified or not justified?

```
PCT
    N VALUE LABEL
40.8 373
         1 JUSTIFIED
            5 NOT JUSTIFIED
59.2 542
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     33
           9 REFUSED
     17
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

IR2 Benefits/Costs War

Do you think the potential benefits of the war in Iraq outweigh the costs that Americans are bearing?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 38.5 338 1 YES 61.5 541 5 NO 69 8 DO NOT KNOW 17 9 REFUSED 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/29

Vote 2004 Election vote1

Next, I have some questions about the 2004 presidential election.

Did you vote in the 2004 presidential election held on November 2?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 86.8 834 1 YES 5 NO 13.2 127 8 DO NOT KNOW 0 4 9 REFUSED 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

vote2 Vote Candidate

Did you vote for George Bush, John Kerry, Ralph Nader or someone else?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
1.4	11		0	SOMEONE ELSE
43.4	326		1	GEORGE BUSH
53.6	403		3	JOHN KERRY
1.5	12		5	RALPH NADER
	1		8	DO NOT KNOW
	82		9	REFUSED
	131			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/31

Protect Terrorism ex1

His ability to protect the US from terrorism?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
66.3	480		1	VERY IMPORTANT
27.4	198		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
6.3	45		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	25		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ex2 Values

He shared your values?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
67.1	485		1	VERY IMPORTANT
26.7	193		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
6.3	45		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	1		8	DO NOT KNOW
	27		9	REFUSED
	214		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/48

ex3 Economy and Job Creation

His ability to manage the economy and create jobs?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
70.5	501		1	VERY IMPORTANT
26.1	185		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
3.4	24		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	13		8	DO NOT KNOW
	27		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	CAGEG		

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ex4 Healthcare Policy

His policy on healthcare?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
61.5	434		1	VERY IMPORTANT
30.8	218		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
7.7	54		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	15		8	DO NOT KNOW
	31		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/50

ex5 Social Security

His policy on social security and medicare?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
59.1	423		1	VERY IMPORTANT
34.6	248		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
6.2	45		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	8		8	DO NOT KNOW
	28		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ехб Leadership Qualities

His leadership qualities?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
72.9	525		1	VERY IMPORTANT
24.9	180		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
2.2	16		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	5		8	DO NOT KNOW
	25		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/52

ex7 Environmental Policies

His environmental policy?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N	VAL	UΕ	LABEL
46.2	323		1	VERY IMPORTANT
42.0	294		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
11.7	82		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	20		8	DO NOT KNOW
	32		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ex8 Ability Deal Iraq

His ability to deal with the situation in Iraq?

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
74.5	548		1	VERY IMPORTANT
20.8	153		3	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
4.8	35		5	NOT IMPORTANT
	7		8	DO NOT KNOW
	8		9	REFUSED
	214			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/54

ex9 Moral Issues

His position on moral issues.

(Was this very important, somewhat important, or not important in your decision to vote for [fill candidate])?

PCT 59.2 31.6 9.2	N 426 227 66		VALUE 1 3 5	LABEL VERY IMPORTANT SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT NOT IMPORTANT
7.4	5		8	DO NOT KNOW
	27		9	REFUSED
	214		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

prop2 Vote Prop2

In the November election, Michigan voters were asked to vote on Proposal 2, which amended the state constitution to specify what can be recognized as a marriage or a similar union.

Proposal 2 stated that the union of one man and one woman in marriage shall be the only agreement recognized as a marriage or similar union for any purpose.

Did you vote in favor or against Proposal 2?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
59.7	460		1	VOTED IN FAVOR PROPOSAL 2
40.3	311		5	VOTED AGAINST PROPOSAL
	30		8	DO NOT KNOW
	34		9	REFUSED
	131			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Decimals: 0

Input location: 1/56

Smoke 100 Cigarettes cs1

Next, I have some questions about health and health care.

Have you smoked at least 100 cigarettes in your entire life?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
45.3 432
         1 YES
            5 NO
54.7 522
            8 DO NOT KNOW
      8
           9 REFUSED
      3
     965 cases
```

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/57

cs2 Current Smoking Status

Do you currently smoke cigarettes every day, some days, or not at all?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
42.9	185		1	EVERYDAY
7.6	33		3	SOME DAYS
49.5	214		5	NOT AT ALL
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	533		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

cs3a Ads Keep Smokers

The next few questions are about cigarette advertising.

For these questions, please think about the kinds of cigarette ads that appeared in newspapers and magazines, on billboards, and in stores where cigarettes are sold.

Please tell me to what extent you agree or disagree with each of the following statements. The first is . . .

Cigarette ads encourage smokers to keep smoking their current brands.

Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
45.5	420	1	STRONGLY AGREE
26.5	245	2	SOMEWHAT AGREE
4.3	39	3	NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
12.7	118	4	SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
11.0	102	5	STRONGLY DISAGREE
	35	8	DO NOT KNOW
	6	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

cs3b Ads Switch Brands

Cigarette ads cause some smokers to switch brands.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
PCT
        N VALUE LABEL
14.9 127 1 STRONGLY AGREE
36.0 306 2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
7.4 63 3 NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
21.3 181 4 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
20.4 173 5 STRONGLY DISAGREE
90 8 DO NOT KNOW
          25
                       9 REFUSED
          ___
```

965 cases

Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Type: numeric

Max: 5 Decimals: 0

Input location: 1/60

cs3c

Ads Encourage Minors

Cigarette ads encourage minors to start smoking.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
39.8 370 1 STRONGLY AGREE
30.3 282 2 SOMERITATION
      N VALUE LABEL
PCT
              3 NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
4 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
      17
1.8
12.4 116
              5 STRONGLY DISAGREE
15.7 146
               8 DO NOT KNOW
       21
               9 REFUSED
       14
      965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/61

cs3d Ads Harder to Quit

Cigarette ads make it harder for smokers to quit smoking.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
26.3	240	1	STRONGLY AGREE
21.7	199	2	SOMEWHAT AGREE
3.6	33	3	NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
25.6	234	4	SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
22.8	209	5	STRONGLY DISAGREE
	35	8	DO NOT KNOW
	14	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/62

cs3e

Ads Encourage More Smoke

Cigarette ads cause some smokers to smoke more.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
           1 STRONGLY AGREE
17.7 160
20.8 188
              2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
              3 NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
4 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
3.4
      31
32.3 292
              5 STRONGLY DISAGREE
8 DO NOT KNOW
25.9 235
       45
              9 REFUSED
       14
      ___
      965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/63

cs3f Warnings Discourage Smoking

The Surgeon General's warnings in cigarette ads discourage smoking.

(Would you say you strongly agree, somewhat agree, somewhat disagree, or strongly disagree?)

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
17.5 161
        1 STRONGLY AGREE
25.3 233
           2 SOMEWHAT AGREE
4.3
    39
           3 NEITHER AGREE/DISAGREE
26.8 247
           4 SOMEWHAT DISAGREE
26.2 242
           5 STRONGLY DISAGREE
            8 DO NOT KNOW
     29
            9 REFUSED
     14
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/64

Il Medical Insurance

Now, I have some questions about health insurance.

Do you have health insurance coverage from any source, including Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance from your employer or union, coverage from another family member, or individually purchased coverage?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
92.8 893 1 YES
7.2 69 5 NO
0 8 DO NOT KNOW
2 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/65

I1a Medicaid

At any time in the past 2 years, were you covered by the Medicaid program?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
28.9	20		1	YES
71.1	49		5	NO
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	2		9	REFUSED
	893			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/66

I1b Reason No Longer Medicaid

What is the main reason why you lost your Medicaid coverage?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
19.3	4	1	NO LONGER ELIGIBLE DUE TO INCOME
42.3	8	2	STARTED WORKING
0.0	0	3	STILL HAVE COVERAGE
0.5	0	4	LOST DUE TO STATE BUDGET CUTS
37.9	7	5	NO LONGER ELIGIBLE: OTHER REASONS
	1	98	DO NOT KNOW
	0	99	REFUSED
	945		Not Applicable
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

I2 Type of Health Insurance

Does your primary or main health care coverage come from Medicare, Medicaid, another government health insurance program, from a plan provided through an employer or union, or from an individually purchased private insurance plan?

```
PCT
              VALUE LABEL
5.8
      52
                  0 OTHER: SPECIFY
17.5 154
                  1 MEDICARE
6.6
    58
                  2 MEDICAID
2.0
                 3 ANOTHER GOVERNMENT PROGRAM (CHAMPUS)
    18
60.7 536
                 4 PLAN PROVIDED THROUGH EMPLOYER
7.4
      65
                 5 INDIVIDUALLY PURCHASED PRIVATE INSURANCE PLAN
       2
                98 DO NOT KNOW
                99 REFUSED-NO ANSWER
       9
      72
                 . Not Applicable
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/69-70

I2a Supplemental Insurance Coverage

Many people covered by Medicare or other government insurance programs also have supplementary insurance coverage, either private insurance or from the government through Medicaid.

Do you have supplemental insurance coverage?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
57.7 149 1 YES
42.3 109 5 NO
3 8 DO NOT KNOW
2 9 REFUSED
701 . Not Applicable
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 1/71

I2aa Source of Supplemental Insurance

Is it group insurance through a current or former employer or union, individual supplemental insurance paid for by you or another family member, medicaid or another government insurance, or something else?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
56.8	84	1	GROUP INSURANCE THROUGH YOUR EMPLOYER OR UNION
33.7	50	2	INDIVIDUAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE PAID ONLY BY YOU/FAMILY
9.5	14	3	MEDICAID, OTHER GOVERNMENT
	0	98	DO NOT KNOW
	2	99	REFUSED
	816		Not Applicable
	965 case	S	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Input location: 1/72-73

I2b Medicare/Medicaid

Many people covered by private insurance also have either Medicare or ${\tt Medicaid}$.

Do you have either Medicare or Medicaid coverage in addition to your private insurance coverage?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
5.2	32	1	YES, MEDICARE
0.9	6	2	YES, MEDICAID
0.7	4	3	BOTH MEDICARE AND MEDICAID
93.3	571	4	NO, NO OTHER INSURANCE COVERAGE
	5	8	DO NOT KNOW
	0	9	REFUSED
	346		Not Applicable
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 1/74

I2c Length Coverage

For how long have you been covered by your private insurance plan?

PCT 7.6 7.9 4.1 5.2 6.3 8.5 1 4.5 2.9 2.4 4.8 1.0 4.6 1.1 1.4 5.7 0.5 4.3 0.7 0.5 4.5 0.6 0.5 4.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6	N 56 58 30 38 46 59 33 15 21 18 35 9 20 7 8 35 5 13 15 10 33 5 4 3 3 22 5 4 3 3 5 5 6	VALUE 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	LABEL LESS THAN YEARS	1	YEAR
0.4 3.5 0.4 0.6	3 25 3 5	29 30 31 32			
0.4 0.3 0.8 0.1 0.5 0.8	3 2 6 1 4 6	33 34 35 36 37 38 39			
3.4 0.6 0.8	25 4 6	40 41 42			

February 15, 2005

```
0.1
    0
             43
0.2 2
             44
0.5
    3
             45
0.1
    1
             46
0.3 2
            48
0.1
    1
            49
0.8 6
            50
0.1
    1
            51
            53
0.1
    1
0.4
    3
            54
0.3 2
            55
0.0
            56
0.8 6
            60
0.0
            62
0.1
    0
            63
0.0
            64
0.0
             70
0.0
            90 YEARS
          98 DO NOT KNOW
99 REFUSED
. Not Applicable
   16
    4
   213
   ____
   965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 70

I2d Coverage - Special Conditions

Do you have any health insurance coverage for special conditions, for example cancer insurance, prescription drug coverage, or nursing home insurance?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
51.2 378 1 YES
48.8 360 5 NO
11 8 DO NOT KNOW
4 9 REFUSED
213 . Not Applicable
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/7

I2e@a Conditions Covered - 1st Mention

What kinds of special conditions are covered by this policy?

- ~-				
PCT	N	VA	LUE	LABEL
74.9	111		1	PRESCRIPTION COVERAGE
1.7	3		2	CANCER COVERAGE
4.9	7		3	NURSING HOME COVERAGE
2.5	4		4	HOSPITALIZATION
0.9	1		5	VISION CARE/EYES/GLASSES
3.2	5		6	SHORT/LONG TERM DISABILITY
3.9	6		7	DENTAL COVERAGE
1.4	2		8	FULL COVERAGE/EVERYTHING
0.0	0		9	CO-PAYS
2.6	4		10	CO-PAYS
3.9	6		97	MISCELLANEOUS
	36		98	DO NOT KNOW
	193		99	DO NOT KNOW
	587			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 97

Input location: 2/8-9

I2e@b Conditions Covered - 2nd Mention

PCT	N	VALUE	3	LABEL
3.5	5	1	L	PRESCRIPTION COVERAGE
3.1	4	2	2	CANCER COVERAGE
0.8	1	3	3	NURSING HOME COVERAGE
0.8	1	4	1	HOSPITALIZATION
5.9	8	Ţ	5	VISION CARE/EYES/GLASSES
0.1	0	6	5	SHORT/LONG TERM DISABILITY
0.6	1	-	7	DENTAL COVERAGE
3.6	5	8	3	FULL COVERAGE/EVERYTHING
0.0	0	g	9	CO-PAYS
80.0	113	90)	NO MORE MENTIONED
1.5	2	97	7	MISCELLANEOUS
	3	98	3	DO NOT KNOW
	4	99	9	DO NOT KNOW
	816			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

Input location: 2/10-11

Ι7 Medicare HMO

Are you enrolled in a Medicare HMO (Health Maintenance Organization)?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
            1 YES
5 NO
21.8
    40
78.2 144
     6
                8 DO NOT KNOW
           9 REFUSED
. Not Applicable
      0
     775
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

I3 Name Private Plan

What is the name of your private health plan or private health insurance company?

PCT	N	VALUE	
	18		AETNA
45.8			BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHEILD
7.6	52 45	3	BLUE CARE NETWORK
6.7		4	HEALTH ALLIANCE PLAN OF MICHIGAN
1.1	8	_	OMNICARE 0 OTHER: SPECIFY
2.1		6	AFLAC
0.2	1	7	AMERICAN COMMUNITY
0.2	1		AMERICAN SECURITY
0.3	2 11 6	9	-
1.6	11	10	CARE CHOICES
0.8	6		CAREMARK
0.7	5		CIGNA (SIGNA)
0.0	0 0		COMMUNITY BLUE
0.0			CONNECT CARE
0.3	2		FORTRESS HEALTH CARE
0.2	2 2 10		GOLDEN RULE
1.4	10		HEALTH PLUS
	10		MESSA
2.0	14		MCARE
0.1	0	20	MUTUAL OF OMAHA
0.2	2		OMNICARE
1.6			PHP-PHYSICIANS HEALTH PLAN
0.5	3	23	PPO-GENERAL
2.2	15		PPOM-GENERAL
0.3	2	25	PREFERRED CHOICES
4.3	29	26	PRIORITY HEALTH
0.0	0	27	-
0.0	0	28	STANDARD HEALTH AND LIFE
0.2	2 15	29	STATE FARM
2.3		30	UNITED HEALTH CARE
0.3	2	31	WELLNESS PLAN
0.1	1	32	WEYCO
0.0	0	33	ASR
0.2	1	34	NGS
1.4	10	35	HMO-GENERAL
0.0	0 2	36	UNICARE
0.3	2	37	CONTINENTIAL HEALTH CARE
0.2	1	38	CONSECO
0.1	1	40	SELF-FUNDED
0.2	2	41	FARM BUREAU
2.4	16	42	GREAT LAKES HEALTH
1.3	9	43	CHICKERING

```
0.3 2
             44 MCCLAREN HEALTH
0.1 0
             45 GRAND VALLEY HEALTH CARE
0.4 3
             46 MEGA
0.5
    3
             47 GMC
4.9 33
             90 MISCELLANEOUS OTHER
    38
             98 DON'T KNOW
    37
             99 REFUSED
             . Not Applicable
    215
    965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 90

Input location: 2/13-14

I3a Others Covered

Is anyone else in your household besides yourself covered by this policy?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
65.0	486		1	YES
35.0	262		5	NO
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	215			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

I12 Number Plans

When you or another family member chose this insurance plan, did you have a choice of more than one plan, or was this the only insurance plan offered?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
64.7 470 1 CHOICE OF MORE THAN ONE PLAN
35.3 256 5 ONLY INSURANCE PLAN OFFERED
20 8 DO NOT KNOW
5 9 REFUSED
215 . Not Applicable
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/16

I15 Importance of Cost

When choosing this plan, how important was the overall cost of the plan for you, including premiums, co-payments, deductibles, and the need to pay for uncovered services in your decision to choose this plan?

Was this very important, somewhat important, not very important, or not important at all?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
68.9	326		1	VERY IMPORTANT
20.7	98		2	SOMEWHAT IMPORTANT
6.1	29		3	NOT VERY IMPORTANT
4.3	20		4	NOT IMPORTANT AT ALL
	13		8	DO NOT KNOW
	3		9	REFUSED
	476			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 2/17

February 15, 2005

I5 Primary Care Physician

Does your insurance coverage require you to choose a primary care physician?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
52.0	361	1	YES
48.0	333	5	NO
	53	8	DO NOT KNOW
	4	9	REFUSED
	215		Not Applicable
	965 cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/18

16 Referrals

Does your primary care physician or insurer have to approve any referrals to specialty physicians or hospitals before the insurance will cover care from a specialist or hospital?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
76.5	263		1	YES
23.5	81		5	NO
	15		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	604			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

18 Prescription Medicines

Does your insurance cover any of the cost (some or all) of prescription drugs?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
86.8	641		1	YES
13.2	98		5	NO
	12		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	215		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/20

I17 Switch Different Plan

Do you intend to switch to a different health plan when you next have an opportunity?

(IWER: DEPENDING ON THE R'S ANSWER, PLEASE PROBE WITH" Would you say definately yes/no) or probably (yes/no).

DOM	NT.		777 T TTD	TADET
PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
13.4	61		1	YES, DEFINITELY
9.2	41		2	YES, PROBABLY
24.4	111		3	NO, PROBABLY NOT
53.0	240		4	NO DEFINITELY NOT
	16		8	DON'T KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	495			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

E4Charter Schools

The next few questions are about education and education funding.

Charter schools are independent public schools that are free from $% \left(1\right) =\left(1\right) \left(1\right) +\left(1\right) \left(1\right) \left(1\right) +\left(1\right) \left(1\right)$ many of the regulations placed on traditional public schools. Charter schools can be organized by anyone, as long as they receive approval from a public sponsor such as a school district or a university.

Do you favor or oppose charter schools in Michigan?

61.8 534 1 FAVOR 10.3 89 3 INDIFFERE	
10.3 89 3 INDIFFERE	
	ГИ
27.9 241 5 OPPOSE	
81 8 DO NOT KNO	ΟW
20 9 REFUSED	
965 cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

sc1 Funding for Capital Resources

> Funding for schools comes primarily from two sources, the state government in the form of per pupil funding, and local communities in the form of bonds which are approved by local communities and paid for through property taxes.

Currently things like school buildings, computer and science labs, and wiring to access the internet are funded primarily by local communities. These are considered capital resources.

Do you think these capital resource expenditures should be funded mainly by local school districts or mainly by state government?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
32.2	278	1	LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS
52.4	452	2	STATE GOVERNMENT
15.4	133	3	BOTH EQUALLY: VOLUNTEED
	74	8	DO NOT KNOW
	27	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Decimals: 0

sc2 Pass Funding

Thinking about your local school district, how easy or difficult would it be for your school district to win voter approval to fund a major renovation by issuing school bonds?

Would you say very easy, somewhat easy, somewhat difficult, or very difficult?

IWER: IF R STATES SOMETHING SUCH AS "WE ALREADY DID THAT" OR "WE DON'T NEED IT" OR "WE TURNED ONE DOWN". PROBE WITH: "That is useful to know, but in general, would you say very easy, somewhat easy, somewhat difficult or very difficult?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
14.3	126	1	VERY EASY
30.3	267	2	SOMEWHAT EASY
32.4	286	3	SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT
23.0	203	4	VERY DIFFICULT
	61	8	DO NOT KNOW
	22	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

sc3 Condition Buildings

Thinking about the school buildings, computer and science labs, and wiring for the internet in your local school, would you say they are better than, worse than, or about the same as other similarly sized school districts in the state?

Would you say your is better than, worse than, or about the same as other similarly sized school districts in the state?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
29.8 229 1 BETTER THAN
15.9 122 3 WORSE THAN
54.3 418 5 ABOUT THE SAME
175 8 DO NOT KNOW
21 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/25

CD1 Sex

Finally, I have a few background questions. These are for statistical analysis purposes only.

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
47.8 461 1 MALE
52.2 504 5 FEMALE
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD2 Year Born

In what year were you born?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
0.1	1	7	
0.0 0.2	0 2	10 11	
0.1	1 0	14	
0.3	3	15 16	
0.0	0 2	17 18	
0.3	3	19	
0.1	1 9	20 21	
0.3 1.1	3 11	22 23	
0.6	5 11	24	
1.2 1.0	11 10	25 26	
0.5	4	27	
0.4	4 8	28 29	
0.2	2 4	30 31	
0.8	8	32	
1.0	10 8	33 34	
0.9 0.9 0.9	8 9	35 36	
1.3	13	37	
0.9 1.5	9 15	38 39	
0.9	9	40	
0.5	6 5	41 42	
1.5 0.8	15 8	43 44	
1.8	17	45	
2.0 1.8	19 18	46 47	
1.2 1.4	11 14	48 49	
1.2	14 12	50	
1.7 1.6	16 15	51 52	
1.5	14	53	

1.1 2.0 2.4 1.6 1.4 2.7 2.6 1.1 3.4 2.0 2.3 2.3 0.6 1.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 1.8 0.8 2.2 3.6 0.7 3.4 2.0 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 0.7 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6	10 19 23 15 13 26 25 14 10 32 19 23 26 25 16 25 16 27 21 23 56 25 16 7 27 21 23 56 25 49 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40	54 55 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 66 66 67 77 77 77 77 81 82 88 88 89 99
	965	cases

Type: numeric Min: 7 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 999

CD3 Education

What is the highest level of education you have completed?

PCT 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1	N 0 0 0	VALUE 0 1 5 7	LABEL DID NOT GO TO SCHOOL GRADE
	11	8	
	9	9	
0.6	6	10	
3.0	28	11	GRADE
23.5	219	12	HIGH SCHOOL GRAD OR GED
9.2	86	13	COLLEGE
13.4	125	14	
5.6	52	15	COLLEGE
20.9	195	16	COLLEGE GRADUATE
3.8	35	17	SOME POST GRADUATE
15.4	143	18	GRADUATE DEGREE
2.4	22	20	TECHNICAL/JUNIOR COLLEGE GRAD
	3	98	DO NOT KNOW
	30	99	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 5 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 20

Input location: 2/30-31

CD5a Ethncity

Are you of Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin?

```
N VALUE LABEL
13 1 YES, HISPANIC
923 5 NO, NOT HISPANIC
2 8 DO NOT KNOW
27 9 REFUSED
 PCT
 1.4
98.6 923
           965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/32

February 15, 2005

CD4a@a White

What is your race?

White?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 80.3 757 1 YES 19.7 185 5 NO 0 8 DO NOT KNOW 23 9 REFUSED

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/33

CD4a@b African American or Black

African American or Black?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 14.2 134 1 YES 85.8 808 5 NO 0 8 DO NOT KNOW 23 9 REFUSED

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD4a@c Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander

Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 0.0 0 1 YES 100.0 942 5 NO 0 8 DO NOT KNOW 23 9 REFUSED

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 5 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/35

CD4a@d Asian

Asian?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 2.3 22 1 YES 97.7 920 5 NO 0 8 DO NOT KNOW 23 9 REFUSED 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD4a@e American Indian or Alaska Native

American Indian or Alaska Native?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 0.7 7 1 YES 5 NO 99.3 936 0 8 DO NOT KNOW 22 9 REFUSED 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/37

CD6 Religion

What is the religious group which you feel most closely represents your religious views?

(Is it Catholic, Islamic, Jewish, Protestant, some other religion, or no religion)?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
13.0	119	0	NONE
22.4	205	1	CATHOLIC
1.3	12	2	ISLAMIC/MUSLIM
1.7	15	3	JEWISH
44.5	407	4	PROTESTANT
2.9	27	5	OTHER NON CHRISTIAN
14.2	130	7	OTHER CHRISTIAN
	13	98	DO NOT KNOW
	35	99	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

CD6a

Participate Religious Services

How often do you participate in religious services or observances, aside from reading or praying on your own?

Would you say never, a few times a year such as on holidays, a least once a month, at least once per week, or more than once a week?

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
12.5 114
          1 NEVER
25.5 233
           2 A FEW TIMES A YEAR; HOLIDAY
19.1 174
           3 A LEAST ONCE A MONTH
29.1 265
           4 AT LEAST ONCE PER WEEK
13.9 127
           5 MORE THAN ONCE A WEEK
     13
           8 DO NOT KNOW
           9 REFUSED
     39
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/40

CD7@a

Political ID

Generally speaking, do you think of yourself as a Republican, a Democrat, an Independent or something else?

```
PCT
      N VALUE LABEL
5.8
    52
         0
            1 REPUBLICAN
29.4 264
            4 INDEPENDENT
26.9 241
            7 DEMOCRAT
37.9 340
            8 DO NOT KNOW
     15
            9 REFUSED
     54
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 7

CD7@b Republican

Would you call yourself a strong Republican or not a very strong Republican?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
53.9 134 1 STRONG
46.1 115 2 NOT VE
13 8 DO NOT
                  1 STRONGLY REPUBLICAN
                     2 NOT VERY STRONG REPUBLICAN
                    8 DO NOT KNOW
       2
                    9 REFUSED
      701
                  . Not Applicable
      965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 2

Input location: 2/42

CD7@c Democrat

Would you call yourself a strong Democrat or not a very strong Democrat?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
38.4	127		6	NOT VERY STRONG DEMOCRAT
61.6	204		7	STRONG DEMOCRAT
	8		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	625			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 6 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

CD7@d Independent

Do you generally think of yourself as closer to the Democratic Party or the Republican Party?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
23.6	56		3	REPUBLICAN
38.1	91		4	NEITHER
38.3	92		5	DEMOCRAT
	1		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	724		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 3 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/44

-wid pa

	Par	ty ID	
N	7	VALUE	LABEL
52		0	Other
134		1	strong republican
115		2	not strong rep
56		3	lean republican
91		4	neither
92		5	lean democrat
127		6	not strong dem
204		7	strong democrat
15		8	DO NOT KNOW
54		9	REFUSED
25			Not Applicable
965	cases		
	52 134 115 56 91 92 127 204 15 54 25	N 52 134 115 56 91 92 127 204 15 54 25	52 0 134 1 115 2 56 3 91 4 92 5 127 6 204 7 15 8 54 9 25 .

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

P17@a Political Ideology

Generally speaking, do you think of yourself as a conservative, a moderate, or a liberal?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
3.2	28	0	
35.9	314	1	CONSERVATIVE
36.8	322	4	NEITHER
24.1	211	7	LIBERAL
	41	8	DO NOT KNOW
	49	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/46

P17@b Conservative

Would you consider yourself very conservative or somewhat conservative?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
24.6	77		1	VERY CONSERVATIVE
75.4	235		2	SOMEWHAT CONSERVATIVE
	2		8	DO NOT KNOW
	0		9	REFUSED
	651		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 2

P17@c Liberal

Would you consider yourself very liberal or somewhat liberal?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
62.6	131		6	SOMEWHAT LIBERAL
37.4	78		7	VERY LIBERAL
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	754			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 6 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/48

P17@d Middle

Do you generally think of yourself as closer to the conservative side or the liberal side?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
39.4	126		3	CLOSER CONSERVATIVE
25.5	82		4	IN THE MIDDLE
35.1	112		5	CLOSER LIBERAL
	1		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	REFUSED
	643		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 3 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ideology 1 very conservative PCT N VALUE LABEL 0.0 0 other 77 9.1 1 very conservative 27.9 235 2 somewhat conservative 15.0 126 3 lean conservative 9.7 82 4 middle 13.3 112 5 lean liberal 6 somewhat liberal 7 very liberal 15.6 131 9.3 78 41 8 DO NOT KNOW 49 9 REFUSED . Not Applicable 33 ___ 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 7

Input location: 2/50

vi2 Registered Voter

Are you registered to vote in Michigan?

```
N VALUE LABEL
PCT
         1 YES
91.2 859
           5 NO
8.8
    83
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     0
           9 REFUSED
     23
     ___
    965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

vi4 Vote 2000 Election

Did you vote in the 2000 Presidential election, Bush vs. Gore.

```
PCT
     N VALUE LABEL
77.0 723
           1 YES
18.7 176
           3 NO
4.3 40
           5 NO, NOT OLD ENOUGH
     3
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     23
           9 REFUSED
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/52

fp1 Follow Politics

How closely would you say you follow news about politics and government?

Would you say very closely, somewhat closely, not very closely, or not at all?

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
30.7	289	1	VERY CLOSELY
52.4	494	2	SOMEWHAT CLOSELY
14.4	136	3	NOT VERY CLOSELY
2.5	24	4	NOT AT ALL
	0	8	DON'T KNOW
	22	9	REFUSED
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 4

interest Interest Politics

How interested are you in politics?

Would you say you are very interested, somewhat interested, not very interested, or not interested at all?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
24.4 230 1 VERY INTERESTED
57.2 537 2 SOMEWHAT INTERESTED
13.0 122 3 NOT VERY INTERESTED
5.4 51 4 NOT INTERESTED AT ALL
3 8 DO NOT KNOW
22 9 REFUSED
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

Input location: 2/54

CD8 Marital Status

What is your marital status?

(Are you currently married, divorced, separated, widowed, member of an unmarried couple, or have you never been married?)

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
0.7	6	0	
50.2	472	1	MARRIED
12.1	114	2	DIVORCED
2.0	19	3	SEPARATED
9.7	91	4	WIDOWED
1.4	14	5	MEMBER UNMARRIED COUPLE
23.8	223	6	SINGLE NEVER BEEN MARRIED
	0	8	
	26	9	
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 6

Input location: 2/55

February 15, 2005

CD10 Adults

Including yourself, how many individuals who are 18 years of age or older live in your household?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
33.5	323		1	ADULTS
47.1	453		2	
12.8	123		3	
6.3	60		4	
0.3	3		5	
	0		98	DO NOT KNOW
	0		99	REFUSED
	3			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

CD15 Employment Status

We are interested in learning about the different ways people may earn their living. Last week, were you working full-time, part-time, going to school, a homemaker or something else?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL

53.6 500 1 WORK FULL TIME

9.0 84 2 WORK PART TIME

2.9 27 3 WORK AND GO TO SCHOOL

0.0 0 4 IN THE ARMED FORCES

0.1 1 5 JOB, DID NOT WORK LAST WEEK

3.4 32 6 UNEMPLOYED

18.9 176 7 RETIRED

4.9 46 8 SCHOOL FULL-TIME

4.6 43 9 HOMEMAKER

2.6 25 10 DISABLED

0 98 DO NOT KNOW

31 99 REFUSED

---

965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 10

Input location: 2/58-59

UN1 Union Member

Are you currently a member of a union or are you represented by a union?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
31.1 190 1 YES
68.9 422 5 NO
0 8 DO NOT KNOW
1 9 REFUSED
352 . Not Applicable
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/60

February 15, 2005

UN2 Past Union

Have you ever been a member of a union or represented by a union?

```
VALUE LABEL
37.0 277
                1 YES
63.0 471
                5 NO
     3
                8 DO NOT KNOW
                9 REFUSED
     25
     190
                . Not Applicable
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/61

UN3 Union Family

Is anyone else in your household a member of a union or represented by a union?

```
PCT
    N VALUE LABEL
19.7 184
        1 YES
           5 NO
80.3 750
           8 DO NOT KNOW
     7
           9 REFUSED
     24
    965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

inca

\$35,000 or More

To get a picture of people's financial situations, we'd like to know the general range of incomes of all households we interview. This is for statistical analysis purposes and your answers will be kept strictly confidential. Now, thinking about your household's total annual income from all sources (including your job), did your household receive \$30,000 or more in 2003?

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
76.4 639 1 YES
23.6 197 5 NO
10 8 DO NOT KNOW
119 9
---
965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/63

incb Less Than \$20,000

Was it less than \$20,000?

```
VALUE LABEL
PCT
       N
50.6
                   1 YES
      96
49.4
                   5 NO
      94
       3
                   8 DO NOT KNOW
       3
                   9
                   . Not Applicable
     768
      ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

incc Less than \$10,000

Was it less an \$10,000?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 28.8 27 1 YES 71.2 67 5 NOT 8 DO NOT KNOW 2 869 . Not Applicable

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/65

incd \$60,000 or More

Was it \$60,000? or more?

PCT VALUE LABEL N 1 YES 5 NO 49.9 313 50.1 315 8 DO NOT KNOW 3 9 8 . Not Applicable 326 ___ 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

ince \$40,000 or More

Was it \$40,000 or more?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 62.1 195 1 YES 37.9 119 5 NO 8 DO NOT KNOW 9 0 650 . Not Applicable

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/67

incf \$50,000 or More

Was it \$50,000 or more?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 1 YES 49.4 93 5 NO 50.6 96 8 DO NOT KNOW 6 . Not Applicable 770 ___ 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

incg \$70,000 or More

Was it more than \$70,000?

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
73.0	227		1	YES
27.0	84		5	NO
	0		8	DO NOT KNOW
	1		9	
	652			Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/69

income		Income	
PCT 3.2	N 27	VALUE 1	
8.3	69	2	· ·
12.0	101	3	\$20,000-29,999
15.7	131	4	\$30,000-39,999
12.1		5	\$40,000-49,999
11.2	93	6	\$50,000-59,999
10.3	86	7	\$60,000-69,999
27.1	227	8	\$70,000 or more
	0	98	DO NOT KNOW
	0	99	REFUSED
	129		Not Applicable
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 99,98 Decimals: 0 Max: 8

CD26 Phone Lines

How many different phone numbers does your household have not including cell phones or numbers that are only used by a computer or fax machine?

```
PCT
      N VALUE LABEL
94.8 895
            1 PHONE NUMBERS
4.9
    46
0.3
       2
             3
0.1
       0
0.0
      0
       0
             8 DO NOT KNOW
      21
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8

Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 2/71

X1 Community

Would you say you live in a rural community, a small city or town, a suburb, or an urban community?

```
PCT
      N VALUE LABEL
1.5
     14
            0
26.9 253
             1 RURAL COMMUNITY
             2 SMALL CITY, TOWN, VILLAGE
36.3 342
24.2 228
             3 A SUBURB
11.2 105
            4 URBAN COMMUNITY
             98 DO NOT KNOW
      1
      22
             99
     ___
     965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 99,98

Decimals: 0 Max: 4

zipcode Zip Code

What is your zip code?

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 9 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 49969

Input location: 2/74-78

RI@a Re-Interview

In a couple of months, we'd like to recontact some of the people we've spoken with for a shorter interview. Would you be willing to participate again in a couple of months?

PCT N VALUE LABEL 87.9 823 1 YES 5 NO 12.1 114 8 DO NOT KNOW 7 21 9 REFUSED ___

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9,8 Decimals: 0 Max: 5

965 cases

contacts		Contacts
PCT 0.1 19.0 16.2 11.6 9.1 10.7 7.4 5.5 3.9 2.7 3.3 1.7 1.6 0.9 2.9 0.7 1.1 1.4	156 112 88	Contacts VALUE 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 18
	965	cases

Type: character Width: 2

Input location: 3/34-35

length Interview Length

, -		
PCT 3.8 0.0 0.1 1.5 2.1 5.5 7.7 12.4 10.1 7.5 10.6	N 37 0 1 14 20 53 74 119 97 73 103	VALUE 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
10.6 6.4 8.8 6.1 2.6 3.5 2.1 2.7 1.8 0.8 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.2	62 85 59 25 34 21 27 18 8 2 4	17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
0.1 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2	6 1 3 2 4 1 2 2 0 1 0 0 2 2 1 965	32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 51 56 64

Type: character Width: 4

Input location: 3/36-39

February 15, 2005

February 15, 2005

```
0.2
    2 01292005
    2 02012005
0.2
0.4
     4 12062004
1.0 10 12072004
0.4
     4 12082004
   11 12092004
1.1
0.2
     2 12102004
1.8
   17 12112004
1.3
   13 12122004
0.8
     8 12132004
3.4
    33 12142004
1.9
   19 12152004
2.9
    28 12162004
0.6
     6 12172004
4.7
    45 12182004
1.7
     16 12192004
1.9
     19 12202004
1.3
    12 12212004
2.5
     24 12222004
0.3
     3 12232004
     7 12272004
0.7
2.9
    28 12282004
3.2
    31 12292004
     30 12302004
3.1
    2 12312004
0.2
    965 cases
```

Type: character Width: 8

Input location: 3/40-47

iwer			Interviewer
iwer	PCT 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 2.4 0.3 1.1	N 1 2 2 1 1 23 2 11 0	Interviewer VALUE 12 20 24 44 49 54 58 76
		0 11 5 22 6 3 2 21 4 26 30 15 12 5 14 4 14 7 6 5 4 3 15 12 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	76 81 85 98 99 101 105 120 121 122 123 124 125 126 129 137 143 146 150 152 154 155 157 158 159 162 166
	6.6 0.5 0.2 6.4 0.2 2.6 1.5 1.5	63 5 2 62 2 26 15 15 1	172 173 174 176 182 191 195 199 200 204

February 15, 2005

February 15, 2005

3.9 38 955 0.3 3 965 0.4 4 996 ---965 cases

Type: character Width: 3

Input location: 3/48-50

males Males

PCT N VALUE
31.9 307
10.1 97 0
45.0 434 1
12.0 116 2
1.1 10 3
0.0 0 33
--965 cases

Type: character Width: 2

Input location: 3/51-52

PCT N VALUE
32.0 308
2.8 27 0
47.4 457 1
12.2 118 2
3.9 38 3
1.7 16 4

Type: character Width: 2

Input location: 3/53-54

965 cases

races Respondent Race

Recoded race of respondent (multiple responses coded to a single group)

PCT	N		VALUE	LABEL
82.4	756		1	White
14.6	134		2	African American
0.0	0		3	Hawaiian Pacific Islander
2.4	22		4	Asian
0.6	5		5	Native American
	48		•	Not Applicable
	965	cases		

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 5

Input location: 3/56

Multiple Racial IDs mult2

Coded from CD4a@a through CD4a@e

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
5.1	50	0	REFUSED-MISSING
94.5	912	1	Single Racial Background
0.3	3	2	Multiple Racial Backgrounds
0.0	0	3	Multiple Racial Backgrounds
0.0	0	4	Multiple Racial Backgrounds
0.0	0	5	Multiple Racial Backgrounds
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: none Decimals: 0 Max: 3

```
agecat
                        Rs age in categories
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
       12.1 111 1 18 - 24 Yrs
       12.1 111 1 18 - 24 Yrs
8.1 74 2 25 - 29 Yrs
19.9 183 3 30 - 39 Yrs
21.6 198 4 40 - 49 Yrs
16.0 147 5 50 - 59 Yrs
4.6 42 6 60 - 64 Yrs
17.9 165 7 65 or older
45 9 REFUSED
               965 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 9
      Decimals: 0 Max: 7
      Input location: 3/58
adjwt
                       Weight adj for phones adults race gender age within region
      965 cases
      Type: numeric Min: 0.0428 MD Codes: 0.0000 Decimals: 4 Max: 10.9685
      Input location: 3/59-64
                      Region code based on MSU Extension Groupings
msueregn
        PCT N VALUE LABEL
              31 1 UP
54 2 NOR
        3.2
                        2 NORTH LP
3 W. CENTRAL
4 E. CENTRAL
5 SOUTHWEST
6 SOUTHEAST URBAN
        5.6
       13.9 134
        8.6
               83
       13.6 131
       55.1 532
               965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 6

Input location: 3/65

February 15, 2005

msuewt weight by MSU region

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 0.0020 MD Codes: none Decimals: 4 Max: 1.2108

Input location: 3/66-71

Weight for Statewide Estimates statewt

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 0.0305 MD Codes: none Decimals: 4 Max: 16.1573

Input location: 3/74-79

rac3 Race 3 categories

PCT N VALUE LABEL

5.0 48 0 Refuse-Not codable 78.3 756 1 White 13.9 134 2 African American 2.9 28 3 Other

965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 0 MD Codes: 9,7 Decimals: 0 Max: 3

AGE Age of Respondent

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
	45	0	REFUSED/MISSING
1.0	9	18	
0.5	4	19	
0.5	5	20	
2.1	19	21	
3.5	32	22	
0.7	6	23	
3.8	35	24	
1.3	12	25	
2.3	21	26	
2.9	27	27	
0.8	7	28	
0.8	8	29	
1.9	18	30	
0.8	7	31	
1.7	16	32	
2.7	25	33	
2.8	26	34	
2.7	25	35	
1.7	16	36 37	
0.6 2.4	6 23	37 38	
2.5	23	39	
2.1	19	40	
3.5	32	41	
1.1	10	42	
1.5	14	43	
2.7	25	44	
2.8	26	45	
1.4	13	46	
1.6	15	47	
2.5	23	48	
2.1	19	49	
1.1	10	50	
1.6	14	51	
1.7	15	52	
1.8	16	53	
1.3	12	54	
1.5	14	55	
1.2	11	56	
1.9	18	57	
2.1	19	58	
1.8	17	59	
0.8	8	60	
1.6	15	61	

February 15, 2005

0.5 0.7 1.0 1.6 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.1 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.9 0.4 0.5 1.1 1.2 0.6 1.2 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2	56 915 913 988 1084 4410 1115 1113 9113 2003 0112 011965	62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 93 94 97
0.1	1	97
	903	cases

Type: numeric Min: 18 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 97

Input location: 3/82-83

imprace Respondent Race with Imputation for missing data

```
PCT N VALUE LABEL
       0 0 Refuse-Not codable
83.0 801 1 White
14.2 137 2 African American
2.9 28 3 Other
      965 cases
```

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 3

Input location: 3/84

Alternative Coding of Income newinc

PCT	N	VALUE	LABEL
	119	0	REFUSED
3.2	27	1	\$10,000 or less
8.3	69	2	\$10,000-19,999
12.0	101	3	\$20,000-29,999
15.7	131	4	\$30,000-39,999
12.1	102	5	\$40,000-49,999
11.2	93	6	\$50,000-59,999
10.3	86	7	\$60,000-69,999
27.1	227	8	\$70,000 or more
	10	9	DO NOT KNOW
	965	cases	

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0,9 Decimals: 0 Max: 8

sample Sample source of Respondent

> PCT N VALUE LABEL 30.9 298 1 S-35 Re-Interview 69.1 667 2 S-36 New Respondent 965 cases

Type: numeric Min: 1 MD Codes: 0 Decimals: 0 Max: 2